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UNITED STATES TARIFF COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.
February 11, 1972

In the matter of an investigation)
with regard to the importation ) Docket No. 28
and domestic sale of certain ) Section 337
lightweight luggage ) Tariff Act of 1930, as amended
INTRODUCTION
On NovemEg;,Z, 1970, Atlantic Products Corp., Trenton, N.J.,
hereinafter referred to as complainant, filed a complaint with‘the
United States Tariff Commission requesting relief under section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 UsS.C. 1337), alleging uh—
fair methods of competition and unfair acts in the importation and
sale oficertain lightweight luggage. Complainant alleges that its
U.S. Patent Nos. 3,298,480 and Re. 26,LL3 cover certain lightweight
luggage and that the importation and sale of such luggage by M&J In-
dustries, Inc., Efenel Corp., and Steinberg-Baum Corp., all of Chicago,
hereinafter referred to as respondents, have the effect or tendency
to destroy or substantially injure an efficiently and economically
operated industry in the United States.
Notice of receipt of the complaint and initiation of the prelimi-
nary inquiry was published in the Federal Register of November 2l,

S— .
1970 (35 F.R. 18222). Interested parties were given until January 11,

1971, to file written views pertinent to the subject matter. In
response to a request, that deadline was later extendea to February 10,
1971§ subsequently, the parties requesting the éxtension notified the
Commission that they would submit no written views. Copies of the
complaint, the notice of investigation, and notice‘of extension of

time for filing written views were served on all known interested

parties.



The Commission conducted a preliminary ingquiry in accordance
with section 203.3 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure
(19 CFR 203.3) to determine whether a full investigation was warranted
and, if so, whether it should recommend to the President that a tempo-
rary exclusion order be issued pursuant to 19 U.5.C. 1337(f). The
standard adopted by the Commission fof deciding whether the issuance
of: such an order should be recomﬁended (as indicated to the parties
concerned by letter notice) is (1) whether a prima facie showing of
violation of section 337 has been established and (2) whether im-
mediate and substantial harm to the domestic indﬁstry would result if
a temporary exclusion order is not issued.

Upon conclusion of its preliminary inguiry the Tariff Commission,
OnrMEESE/IS’ 1971, ordered a formal investigation and agreed to recom-
mend to the President that he issue a temporary exclusion order to
forbid entry into the United States, except under bond, of lightweight

‘luggage embraced within the claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 3,298,480 and
Re. 26,Lh3, except where the importation is made under license of the
registered owner of said patents, until the investigation ordered is
cqmpletéd. The Commission was unanimous in ordering the formal in-
_veSfigation; Commissioners Leonard -and Moore dissented from the recom-
mendation that the President issue a temporary exclusion order.
On December 13, 1971, the President directed the Secretary of the

\5_.

Treasury to enforce a temporary exclusion order against imports of



lightweight luggage made in accordance with the claims of the Atlantic
patents. The notice of this restriction of importation was published

in the Federal Register on December 28, 1971 (36 F.R. 25053).




FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE COMMISSION 1/

The Commission finds violation of section 337(a) of the Tariff
Act of 1930 by unfair methods of competition and unfair acts in the
impprtation and sale of certain lightweight luggage manufactured in
accordance with the claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 3,298,480 and Re. 26L4L3
owned by complainant Atlantic Products Corp., the effect or tendency
of which is to destroy or substantially injure an industry, efficiently
and economically operated, in the United States.

Accordingly, the Commission recommends that, in accordance with
section 337(e) of the Tariff Act of 1936, the President direct the
Secretary of the Treasury to instruct customs officers to exclude from
entry into the United States certain lightweight luggage manufactured
in aécordance with the claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 3,298,480 and
vRe; 26,443 through January 16, 198L and August 15, 1983, the respective

dates of expiration of complainant's patents.

1/ Chairman Bedell and Vice Chairman Parker did not participate in
the decision. ’



CONSIDERATIONS IN SUPPORT OF THE
COMMISSION'S FINDINGS

On November 7, 1970, Atlantic Products Corp. of Trenton, New
Jersey, filed a petition with the United States Tariff Commission
under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, asking that the Commis-
sion recommend to the Pfesident that imported lightweight luggage
which is made in aécordance with the claims of U.S. Patent Nos,
3,298,480 and Re. 26,443, be permanently barred from entry into
the‘United States until expiration of the patents.

The_relevant facts are as follows: In January 1967, Atlantic
Producgs Corp. obtained U.S., Patent ﬁo. 3,298,480 and in Augugt'1968,
Atlantic Products Corp. obtained U.S. Patent No. Re. 26,443, wﬁich
‘expire on January 16, 1984 and August 15, 1983, respectivel&. Both
of these patents relate to a unique method of construction for
lightweight luggage. In late 1969, the importation of the allegéd
infringing lightweight luggage began. The importation of such |
luggage has continued since the first entries in 1969. The allegedly
infringing imported 1uggage is in direct competition with the
patented lightweight luggage being manufactured by Atlantic Products

Corporation.

The Statute

'Sgction 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 declares unlawful unfair
methods of competition and unfair acts in the importation of articles
into the United States, or in their sale by the owner, importer, con-

signee, or agent of either, the effect or tendency of which is (a) to



destroy or substantially injure an efficiently and economically
operated domestic industry, or (b) to prevent the establishment of
such an industry, or (c¢) to restrain or monopolize trade and commerce

in the United States. 1/

Unfair Act
To be considered first in an attempt to apply section 337 to a
fact situation is whether there is the requisite unfair method of
competition and unfair act. In the past,_the Commission has con-
sistently held (and has been upheld upon court review) that the
unauthorized importatioh of articles or sale of such articles
made in accordance with a valid U.S. patent is an unfair method of
competition and unfair act within the meaning of‘sectioh‘337. 2/
The.domestic industry, which is Comprised of the domestic
Afacilitigs of Atlantic Products Corp., engaged in the production
of the patented luggage,-é/ has alleged that cerfaiﬁ imported
lightweight luggage is being made in'aqco:dance with the claims

of its patents. Having viewed and examined the imported luggage .

1/ The effect or tendency of unfair practices to prevent the estab-
lishment of an efficiently and economically operated domestic industry
or to restrain or monopolize trade and commerce are not at issue here.

2/ See In re Von Clemm, 43 C.C.P.A., (Customs) 56, 229 F.2d 441, 443
(1955); In re Orion Co., 22 C.C.P.A. (Customs) 149, 71 F.2d 458, 465
(1934); and In re Northern Pigment Co., 22 C.C.P.A, (Customs) 166,

71 F.2d 447, 455 (1934). See also Frischer & Co. v. Bakelite Corp.,
17 C.C.P.A, (Customs) 494, 39 F.2d 247, 260, cert. denied 282 U.S. 852
(1930). . _ . S '

3/ Atlantic Products Corp. has never granted a license to any party

for the production or sale of the patented luggage., The patents have

never been litigated in any manner before the courts.




along with the patented domestic luggage, we find that the imported
luggage is virtually identical to the domestic luggage in all
essential aspects of construction, including those contained in

the claims of the Atlantic patents and that the unauthorized
importation of this luggage into the United States constitutes

an unfair method of competition and unfair act within the'meéning

of section 337,

Effect or Tendency to Injure

In addition to finding the existence of an unfair method of
competition and unfair act, the statute requires that we consider
whether the effect or tendency of the unfair method and unfair
act is to destroy or substantially injure an efficiently and
economically operated domestic industry. Sales of unauthorized
imported luggage account for a very substantial portion of U.S.
consumption of the patented luggage. These unlicensed sales of
the patented 1uggage.represent potential lost sales, profits and

royalties to the domestic industry. The imported luggage sells at

prices far below those of the domestic industry. Since the appear-
ance of the offending imported luggage in the U.S. market, the
domestic industry has experieﬁced serious declines in sales,
production, and profitability. The number qf‘ﬁmporters entering

the offending luggage has increased consistently since the initial

entries of offending luggage in late 1969. The Commission's



investigation disclosed that tﬂe domestic industry is economically
and efficiently operated, Atlantic Products Corp. uses modern and
efficient manufa?turing equipment and céntinues to introduce up~
to-date eguipment and procedures when available.

It is clear to us from the evi&énce ghat the effect of the
unfair methods and unfair acts in the unauthorized importafion of

lightweight luggage is to injure substantially an efficiently

and economically operated domestic industry.

Conclusion

In view of the foregoing, we conclude that the unauthorized
importation of lightweight luggage into the United States
constitutes an unfair method of competition and unfair act
ahd that the effect of the importation of such lightweight 1luggage
‘has been to substantially injure an efficiently and economically
operated domestic industfy. Accordingly, we find a violation of
section 337 and, therefore, recommend that the President direct
the Secretary of the Treasury to exclude from entry into the
United States lightweight luggage embraced within the claims of
U.S. Patent Nos. 3,298,480 and Re. 26,443, except where the im-
portation is made under license of fhé registered owner of said

U.S. patents.



ALLEGED UNFAIR METHODS OF COMPETITION AND UNFATR ACTS

~ The complainant owns ﬁ.S. Patent No. Re. 26,443, reissued
August 27, 1968 (original No. 3,266,60&,‘dated August 16, }966) and U.S.
Patent No. 3,298,480, issued January 17, 1967, ﬁhich e#pire on August 15,
1983 and January 16, 198L, respecfiveiy. These product patents specifi-
cally cover a type of soft-sided luggage of frame and zipper construc-
tion. The complainant alleges that said patents are being infringed
by the importation into, and sale in, the United States of cértain
lighpweight carry-on luggage. The complainant states that it has ex-
amined the infringing luggage and believes that such luggage embodies.
the inventions as claimed in claim L of:patent No. 3,298,480 anq claim .
5 of patent No..Re. 26,1143 (see appendix).

The complainant, a corporation engaged in the manufacturé of soft-
sided luggage, has never granted a license to any party for the produc-
tion and sale of the patented luggage. The patents in question have
never been litigated in any manner before the courts.

The answer of one respondent, Efenel Corp., alleges that the patents
are invalid and, fufther, that Efenel's luggage does not infringe the
complainant's patents. The respondent adds that the Tariff Commission
should not adjudicate the questions of validity and infringement of
patents between private parties as these matters:should be adjudicated
by the Federal Courts.

Respondents M&J Industries, Inc., and Steigberg-Baum Corp. have
answered alleging that they are not presently, nor have they ever been,
engaged in the importation of the alleged infringing luggage. An af-

fidavit of Frank M. Baum, president of Efenel Corp. states that he is
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an officer of Steinberg-Baum Corp. and that Steinberg-Baum does not
import the alleged infringing luggage but purchases it from Efenel
Corp. The affidavit further states that M&J Industries does not im-

port the alleged ihfringing luggage but purchases it from Efenel Corp.
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ARTICLES UNDER INVESTIGATION

The inventions claimed.in the patents under consideration relate
to a novel carry-case construction. The primary type (Space-mate) of
carrying case is presently being made domestically under the claims
of the patents. This case is about 21 inches long, 13 inches high,
and 9 inches deep when extended. As shown in figure 1 on page 12
the case is divided into three separate and distinect compartments; the
compartment in the center of the case is formed by two panels attached
to the center frame (fig. 1,4), an& the other two, or outside, com-
partménts are formed by each panel and the outer sides of the case
(fig. 1;B). The outer surfaces are made of vinyl, and the inner sur-
faces are fabric. This specific type of carrying case falls int6 a
category of luggage commonly known in the trade as carry-on type lug-
gage l/and belongs to a larger class known as zippered lightweight
casual luggage (referred to as lightweight luggage).

The complained-of imported carfyfon luggage 2/ is identical to

that of the domestic industry in all essential aspects of construction.

1/ It is small enough to be placed under an airline seat.
2/ Only the principal (Space-mate) type of carrying case is being
imported. '
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DESCRIPTION OF PATENTS

In its preliminary investigation the Commission found that the
complained-of imported carry-on luggage embodied the inventions set
forth in claim L of U.S. Patent No. 3,298,480 and claim 5 of U.S.
Patent No. Re. 26,443. No new evidence regarding patent infringement
or validity has been uncévered by further staff investigation or pub-
lic hearings. There have been no real adversary proceedings‘éwing to
the unwillingness of the respondents to appear at the hearing or submit
further information in subport of the allegations made in their .
answer to the complainant's initial complaint.

There are two patents iﬁvolved, each claiming indépendent'iﬁven- o
tions which may be found in soft-sided lightweight luggage. Any un-
licensed soft-sided luggage which incorporates the inventions of
either one of the patents would be infringing. Although the interested
parties have not taken issue with any single element of the claims of
the patents, it is necessary for the Commission to examine the luggage
submitted as evidepce in terms of the elements of the patent claims in
issue.

Both patents apply to bags or cases which are readily carried by
a carrying handle and are soft-sided in construction. Soft-sided lug-

gage is that luggage which has side panels of flexible material.



1L

Claim L of U.S. Patent No. 3,298,480: 1/ Element (a) specifies

a tubular frame (fig. l,Q) formed of rigid material sufficient to
provide the mechanical strength required of the carrying bag. Eleﬁent
(b) provides for a cafrying handle which is attached to the center top
of the tubular frame (fig. 1,I). Element (c) describes panels of
flexible.mater;gl which extend across the opposite ends of the tubular
frame (fig. 1,D). Elements (d) and (e) call for stitch lines attaching
"the flexible material of the panel$ to the rigid tubular frame (fig.

1, J and K). A U-shaped opening in the panel and U-shaéed flap which
form a closure and provide for access to the bag through the panels

are set out in element (f) (fig. 1,D and F). Element (g) provides

1/ Claim L of U.S. Patent No. 3,298,480 reads -as follows (letter
.de51gnat10ns have been added for convenlence)
L. A carrying case comprising

(a) a generally tubular frame;

(b) carrying handle means connected to a central portion
of said tubular frame;

(¢c) .front and rear side panels of flexible material
extending across the opposite ends of said tubular
frame;

(d) first stitch line means extending through one end of
said frame .and the periphery of said front panel;

(e) second stitch line means extending through the other
end of said frame and the periphery of said rear
panel whereby said first and second stitch line
means secure said front and rear panels to ‘said
frame;

(f) said front panel comprising a separate U-shaped
central flap portion extending down from one end
of said front panel and a body portion receiving
said flap portion as a closure;

(g) a coiled plastic zipper comnecting said flap portion
to said body; . said zipper extending along the. full
length of the junction between said flap portion and
said body portion with both ends of said zipper
extending beyond the sald one end of said front
pane 1; K

(h) said first stitch line means extending directly
through said both ends of said zipper.
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for a coiled plastic zipper which forms a junction between the U-
shaped flap and the U-shaped opening (fig. 1,L). Element (h)
states that the first stitch line passes through the extended ends
of the flap zipper (fig. 1,M).

The inventions of this patent can be detected by external examina-
tion of the luggage. The construction technique described in_eleménts
(a) through (e) provide ease in construction since the entire main
frame can be assembled prior to aﬁtachment-of the side panels. The
carrjing bag formed by thelclaimed construction is light, inexfensive,
and flexible. It can be determined whether a piece of luggage incor;
porates the claimed inventiocn by opening the flap and examining the
inside stitch line.

The construction technique described in elements (f) tﬁrough (n)
provide for ease in construction and strength in design. By stitching
across the plastic zipper, separate installation of the zipper is
avoided as well as the expense of extra stitching and the use of more
expensive zippers with premade zipper endings. It can be determined
whether a piece of luggage incorporates the claimed invention by open-
ing the flap and inspecting the junction where the stitch line which

attaches the panel to the frame passes through the zipper endings.
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C‘1éim 5 of U.S. Patent No. Re. 26,Li3: 1/ Elements (d) through
(1) describe a umnique zipper construction for a soft-sided carrying
bag. Elements (a), (b), and (c) have already been covered in the
description of U.S. Patent No. 3,298,480. Element (d) requires that
there be two cooperating zipper halves (fig. 2, H and G) with exterided
fabric portions (fig. 2,N). Two connection means are called for in
element (e) so that connection of the zipper halves can be made to the
flap and panel body. Elements (f) and (g) provide for the connection of

one zipper half to the full perimeter of the flap and the connection of

/ Claim § of U.S. Patent No. Re. 26,L3 reads as follows (letter
de51gnat10ns have been added for convenlence)
5. In a carrying bag:

(a) a main enclosed frame having first and second sice
panels enclosing the ends of said frame;

(b) one of said side panels having a U~shaped flap
therein cooperating with a U-shaped opening
therein;

(c) and zipper means extending between the edge of said
U-shaped flap and the edge of said U-shaped open-
ing to secure said flap to said one of said side
penels and to provide access to the interior of
said bag when said zipper means is open;

(d) said zipper means comprising first and second
cooperating zipper halves having respective
extending fabric portions for securement of said
Zipper halves;

(e) first and second connection means;

(£) said fabric portion of said first zipper portion
enveloping around the full. length of the said
‘edge of said U-shaped opening and connected along
the full length of the said edge of said U-shaped
opening in said one of said panels by said first
connection means;

(g) said fabric portion of said second zipper portion
enveloping around the full length of the said edge
of said U-shaped flap and connected along the full
length of said edge of said U-shaped flap by said
second connection means;

(h) said first zipper half having a free edge extending
outwardly from the exterior surface of said one
of said panels adjacent its said edge;

(i) said second zipper half having a free edge extending
outwardly from the interior surface of said flap.

Y
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the other zipper half to the perimeter of the U-shéped opening in the
body. Elements (h) and (i) describe the attachment of the zipper halves.
One zipper half is attached to the exterior perimeter of the U-shaped
opening in the panel body so that it extends outward from the opening.
The other half of the zipper is attached to the interior perimeter of
the flap so that it extends inward from the outer edge of the flap.

This construction technique hides and protects the zipper. 'Thé’use of
this patented technique is the easiest of the claimed inventions to_
detect. It may be detected by external examination of the'perimetefs

of the flap and U-shaped opening.
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U.S. IMPORTS

Official statistics do not provide separate data on imports of
either lightweight or carry-on luggage. They are part of a basket
category which includes a number of other articles (Tariff Schedules
of the United States Annotated item 706.6035). Included in this basket
are all vihyl luggage, school bags, nested luggage items, vinyl shopping
bags, vinyl cosmetic bags, plastic camera cases, and so forth, but ex-
cludes such articles of leather, unspun fibrous vegetabie mgterials,
textile materials, or reinforced or 1aminated.plastics. The value of
imports in this basket category increased froﬁ $9.3 miliion in 1968 to
$12.4 million in 1969 and to $15.0 million in 1970 (table 1). Japan
has been the principal supplier of these imports, but imports from the
Republic of China showed the greatest increase in 1970.

It is believed that lightweight and carry-on bags (included in
table 2) are being entered into the United States in significant
quantities by importers other than Efenel, located principally in
ANew York City, Los Angeles; and San Francisco. Bureau of Customs
personnel in these areas stated that imports of carry-on luggage in-
 creased significantly in 1970. The Republic of Korea was reportedly

the principal source of such imports in that year.

Allegedly Infringing Imports
The Commission obtained data on imports of allegedly infringing
luggage from three importers. One of the importers, Efenel Corp., was
named by the complainant as a respondent. Imports by Efenel Corp.--
beginning late in 1969 and lasting through November 1970--were

substantial when compared with Atlantic's production and sales of
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patented luggage 1/ in 1970. Imports and sales of allegedly infringing
luggage by the other two importers were smaller. One of these two
importers is located in California, and the other, in Massachusetts.
No evidence was found by the Commission that allegedly infringing
luggage other than the carry-on type was being imported.

‘Imports of allegedly infringing luggage by Efenel and one-of‘the
other importers originated in the Republic of China; the_ofher imports

originated in the Republic of Korea.

Rates of Dqty

U.S. imports of carry-on luggage are dutiable undér item 706;60
of the Tariff Schedules of the United States (TSUS) at a rate_of 20
percent ad valorem. This rate was not reduced in the Kennedy Round
trade negotiations; it has been 20 percent since the effective date of
the TSUS (Aug. 31, 1963).

From_August 16, 1971 to December 20, 1971, a 10 percent surcharge
was imposed on certain imported articles, including the allegedly in-
fringing lightweight 1uggége. 2/ During that period, the aggregate

duty applicable to such luggage was 30 percent ad valorem.

1/ The term "patented luggage", as used in this report, refers only
to the articles covered by one or both of the U.S. patents (Nos.
3,298,480 and Re. 26,L43) included in appendix A.

2/ The surcharge was imposed by Presidential Proclamation No. LOT7L,
and removed by Presidential Proclamation No. 4O98.
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U.S. PRODUCTIdN AND CONSUMPTION

Luggage of a type covered by the claims of the patents is pro-
duced in the United States soiely by Atlantic Products Corp.; no evi-
dence was found of its production by any other U.S. manufacturer.

According to the Luggage and Leather Goods Manufacturers of
America, Inb., the domestic shipments.of all types of luggage in
1969 amounted to about $180 million. An estimated $5 million to $8
million of this total is believed to have been carry-on type luggage,
some of which (that produced by Atlantic) incorporated the patented
features. A number of domestic luggage.manufacturers in addition to
Atlantic are making the carry-on type. It is estimated that 500,000
to 800,000 such bags with an average wholesale price per bag of about
$10, were shipped during 1969. However,‘the domestic production is
believed to have decreased in 1970 because some producers started
importing these bags from the Orient instead of making them in the
United States. The trade source quoted above states that domestic
Aconsumptioh of carry-on luggage in 1970 was valued at $10 million to
$12 million, with about 50 to 60 percent of this figure represented

by imports.

ATLANTIC PRODUCTS CORP.
Atlantic Products Corp., the cemplainant, which was founded in
1925 and incorporated in 1928, has its executive offices and plant
in Trenton? N.J. It is presently one of the five largest domestic
manufacturers of luggage; other products include bowling and golf
bags, and similar articles. Atlantic's annual sales of carry-on

luggage were valued at more than $300,000 in 1968 and exceeded
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#1 miilion in each of the years 1969 and 1970. Atlantic's plant is
=11 .ently and economically operated.

Atlantic Products Corp. is a subsidiary of Cluett, Peabody & Co.,
Inc., of New York City. Cluett, Peabody is a large corporation which
owns 11 manufacturing and marketing subsidiaries for apparel and other
consumer products in addition to Atlantic Products Corp. Seven suf—
sidiaries produce women's and men's apparel, another produées tficot
knit fabrics for the apparel tradé, one opérates men's and women's "
retail apparel stores, and'two license the use of patents and trade-~
marks. Among the better known manufacturing facilities owned by the
parent corporation are the Arrow Co., a manufacturer of men's énd
Womén's shirts and sportswear with facilities in various countries,
and the Sanforized Co., which licenses the worldwide use of its patents
and know-how relating to the compressive shrinkage process. The retail
subsidiary owns a total of 59 retail stores, among them 11 Rogers Peet
outlets, which sell nationally advertised apparel. In 1969 the net
sales of Cluett, Peabody & Co., Inc., amounted to $478.2 million, 7.2

percent greater than the value of 1968 sales ($LL5.6 million).

Production of the Patented Iuggage
Production of patented luggage by Atlantic Products Corp., in-
cluding luggage larger than the carry-on type bag but which incorporates
one or more of the patented features, increased on the average about
35 percent in 1968 and 1969. Production in 1970 was only 1 percent
greater than in 1969, but during thé period January-June 1971 it was

30 percent below that during the corresponding period of 1970.
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Production of carry-on luggage was about LO percent larger in
1968 than it was in 1967, and increased another LO percent in 1969.
Production in 1970, however, declined by about 10 percent from the
1969 level 1/. During the first 6 months of 1971, production was
more than 30 percent below the output during the corresponding months
in 1970. | |

Sales of the Pétented Inggage

Annual sales of the patented luggage by Atlantic increased during
the years 1967-69; the units sold in 1970 were 15 percent higher than
the quantity sold in 1969; the value of sales, however, IwA.as 5 percent
lower. The quantity and value of sales were approximately 55 percent
lower during the first 6 momths of 1971 than during the same period
of 1970. ‘ |

-‘Sales of the patented carry-om type luggage increased annually
from 1967 to 199 but declined by mearly 15 percent in 1970. They
continued to decline in the first 6 months of 1971 and were about 55
percent below sales for the same period 'O‘f" 1970. ©Sales of Iuggage
“of all types by the industry as a whole, however, have tended in past

years to be somewhat higher in the second half of the year.

Employment and Man-hours Worked
The average number of production and related workers employed én
all products at the Atlantic Products Corp. plant increased slightly

between 1967 and 1969. In 1970 the average number of workers employed

_]_._7 Imported allegedly infringing carry-on luggage reportedly first
entered the U.S. market late in 1969.
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declined below the level of employment in 1967; the decline continued
in the first half of 1971. The average number of production and re-
lated workers employed in the manufacture of the patented luggage in
1970 was more than twice the number in 1967; the first 6 months of 1971,
however, showed a slight decline from the corresponding period of 1970.
Man-hours worked on all products by production and related workers
declined irregularly from 1967 to 1970; in 1970 they were abbuf 5 per-
cent below the number of man-hours worked iﬁ 1967. Man-hours worked
on ali patented luggage incfeased irregularly during the 1967-70 period
but during the first 6 months of 1971 were about 20 percent below the'
first 6 months of 1970. Man-hours worked on the patented carry-on
1uggége in 1969 were more than twice the number of hours worked in 1967
but declined slightiy in 1970. During the first 6 months of 1971, man-
hours worked on this type of luggage were also lower by 20 percent than

during the corresponding months of 1970.

Profit-and-loss Experience

Net sales

Net sales of all products by the Atlantic Products Corp. in 1969
were 8 percent higher than they were in 1967; net sales of patented
luggage more than doubled. In 1970, however, net sales of all products
were 2.2 percent lower than in the previous year; saleé of patented
luggage were off by L.9 percent.

During the first 6 months of 1971, net sales of all products were
9.L percent lower than during the corresponding months of 1970; net

sales of patented luggage were 55 percent lower.
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Net operating profit

s

Net operating profit realized on sales of all products by Atlantic
Products Corp. in 1969 was 30.9 percent higher than it was in 1967 but
10.1 percent lower .than in 1968. Net operating profit realized on
sales of patented luggage in 1969 was 133 percent higher than in 1967.
In 1970, net operating profit for all ﬁperations was 25.6 percent
lower than in 1969; on patented iuggage it was 18.6 percent lower.

During the first 6 months of 1971, the net operating profit for
all operations was 73.1 percent lower than during the same period in

1970; on patented luggage it was 59.6 percent lower.

PRICES
Atlantic's Prices of the Patented Luggage

The net wholesale price of Atlantic's patented carry-on luggage
was increased by 8 percent in 1968; it remained on the 1968 level
thfough 1970. The price was further increased by a small percentage
in 1971. The average unit %alue of sales in Jamuary-March 1971 was
‘about 10 percent lower than the net wholesale price as Atlantic in-
stituted special sales to counter foreign competition.

~ -Atlantic's net wholesale price on patented luggage other than the

'carry-on type remained the same during 1967-69. It was reduced by 12.8

percent in 1970 and increased a minimal amount in 1971.
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Prices of the Allegedly Infriﬁging imported Luggage
Data obtained from impérters of the allegedly infringing carry-on
luggage showed the average unit value of sales at the wholesale level
to be substantially less for that luggage than for Atlaﬁtic's patented
carry-on bag. Information obtained from the trade indicated that the
allegedly infringing imported carry-on luggage retails at about half

the retail price of Atlantic's patented carry-on luggage.



%

Appendix A



27

United States Patent Office

3,298,480
Patented Jan. 17, 1967

1

3,298,480
CARRYING BAG CONSTRUCTION
Michael Kish, Jr., Hightstown, N.J., assignor to Atlantic
Products Corporation, Trenton, N.I., a corporation of
New Jersey
Filed May 5, 1965, Ser. No. 453,296
4 Claims. (Cl. 190—54)

This invention relates to a novel carrying bag construc-
tion wherein the main frame is pre-formed of a rigid
rectangular body having a suitable covering means there-
on and suitable hardware directly secured thereto which is
thereafter assembled with front and rear panels of novel
construction.

This application is an improvement of my copending
application Serial No. 387,390, filed August 4, 1964,
which is directed to a novel method of manufacture for
carrying luggage, wherein the assembly of the main frame
of the luggage is carried out in the flat with a central
metallic support receiving all of the various hardware
for the bag,

The present invention is directed to a novel construc-
tion for bags of this general type where, however, the
main frame is formed of a rigid rectangular cylinder
which has finishing materials applied thereto along with
hardware, and thereafter receives the front and rear panels
in a novel manner.

Moreover, an additional feature of the invention in-
volves the use of a novel welt for the connection of the
rear panels in the main bag body and a novel zipper con-
struction for the front panel.

A primary object of this invention is to provide a
novel carrying bag construction which is inexpensive.

Another object of this invention is to provide a novel
construction for carrying bags wherein the main frame
of the bag is a single pre-formed rectangular tube which
is completely finished prior to the assemblage of front and
rear panels.

Yet another object of this invention is to provide a
novel zipper panel for luggage.

A further object of this invention 1s to provide a novel
welt for the securement of front and rear panels to a pre-
assembled main frame, ’

These and other objects of this invention will become
apparent from the following description when taken in
connection with the drawings, in which:

FIGURE 1 shows a perspzciive view of a rigid rectan-
gular tube which forms the body of the main frame of
the carrying bag of the invention,

FIGURE 2 is a side view of the tube of FIGURE 1
aft;r the connection of interior and exterior finishing
strips and various hardware to the main frame, thereby to
completely finish the main frame structure.

FIGURE 3 is a bottom view of FIGUKE 2.

FIGURE 4 is a top view of FIGURE 2.

FIGURE 5 is a cross-sectional view of FIGURE 3 across
the lines 5—5 in FIGURE 3 to illustrate the connection
of one leg to the main frame.

FIGURE 6 is an exploded perspective view of the
main frame, connecting welts and front and rear panels.

FIGURE 7 is a cross-sectional view of the welts of
FIGURE 6.

FIGURE 8 is a plan view of the coil zipper used in
accordance with the invention.

FIGURE 9 illustrates the front panel containing a

zipper therein when assembled with the panel flap and_

zipper of FIGURE 8.

FIGURE 10 is a cross-sectional view of the aszembled
front flap of FIGURE 9 after it has been sewn to its
connecting welt,

FIGURE 11 is an end view partially in cross-section
of the completely assembled bag to illustrate the manner
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in which the subassembled panel and welt is connected
to the finished frame of FIGURE 2.

FIGURE 12 illustrates a modification of the assembly
of panel and welt which includes a plastic inwardly curved
strip to cover the sewn junction between the main bag
body of FIGURE 2 and the welt and panel.

Referring first to FIGURE 1, I have illustrated therein
a rectangular tube 20 which can, for example, be of lam-
inated wood wherein the ends of a sheet are bent to
form in a suitable manner and joined along an elongated
junction 21 in any desired manner.

The techniques for fabricating a wooden frame in this
manner are well known and such frames are commer-
cially available. Alternatively, however, a finished tube
can be formed of any other desired material such as any
of the thermoplastics, or fiber materials. The thickness
of the frame 20 is sufficient to provide substantially all of
the mechanical strength required of the carrying bag and
can, for example, be ¥4’ thick when made of wood or
fiber.

Such frames arc commonly used as the main support
body of carrying bags. In the past, and in order to
finish the bag, the rear panel of the bag is subassembled
with a tubular finishing material, and the tubular finish-
ing material is forced over the top of the frame 20.
Thereafter, the various hardware required was secured
10 the frame and the opposite panel for finishing the bag
was sewn to the edge of the tubular finishing material
covering the frame, This type construction leads to
many manufacturing problems since the tubular finish-
ing material’ must be stretched over the frame.

The principle of one aspect of the present invention
is to completely finish the frame prior to the connection
of panels thereto and thereafter securing the panels to
the frame in a novel manner. More particularly, and
as shown in FIGURE 2, the {frame 20 first has an outer
finishing strip 22 of any suitable material laminated
thereto as by cementing, thereby defining the completely
finished outer frame appearance. Note that the finish-
ing strip 22 overlaps on the junction 23 where this over-
Jap could be left as is or covered with a suitable finishing
strip.  An interior lining 22a is similarly applied as by
cementing to the interior of the bag, defining the finished
lining in the frame section of the bag.

Thereafter, a carrying handle 24 is secured to the top
of the bag (FIGURE 4) as by rivets 25 and 26 which
suitably engage hardware element 29 and rivets 27 and
28 which suitably engage hardware element 30. The
hardware elements 29 and 30 then pivotally mount the
carrying handle 31." Thereafter, the four legs 32 through
35 are secured to the bottom of the bag by suitable rivets
such as the rivets 36 and 37 which engage legs 33 and 35,
respectively.

If desired, a suitable pocket commonly found at the
base of luggage of this tvpe can also be secured to the
base of frame 20 by passing the rivets such as rivets 36 and
37 which sccure legs 33 through 35 through the corners
of such a pocket.

FIGURE § illustrates in detail the manner in which the
legs are supported to the frame. It will be noted that
the rivets 25 through 28 which engage hardware members
29 and 30 are connected in a similar manner. Thus, in
FIGURE 5, a rivet 38 which is similar to rivet 36 has an
enlarged head which engages the outer surface of lining
224. The main body of the rivet then passes directly
through lining 22a (and any pocket that may be at the
hottom of the bag), and thence through the main wooden
frame 20, the outer finishing surface 22 and into the cen-
ter of leg 34. Thereafter, the end of the rivet is expand-
ed into head 39 to engage the internal shoulder in the leg
34,
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With the completion of the securement of hardware,
it will be noted that this portion of the bag is now com-
pletely finished, with the exception of the connection of
side panels thereto.

FIGURE 6 is an exploded perspective view of the
finished assembly of FIGURE 2 designated by numeral
40 in FIGURE 6, along with the rear panel 41, the front
panel 42 comprised of panel section 43 and flap 44, and
the welts 45 and 46 used for securing panels 41 and 43
to the subassembled bag frame 40.

As will be described more fully hereinafter, each of
the welts 45 and 46 are identical extruded plastic mem-
bers having a cross-section shown in FIGURE 7 for the
case of welt 46 wherein the welt has two projecting flange
surfaces 47 and 48 which define a pocket 49 which will be
seen hereinafter to fit over the edge of frame 40. In addi-
tion, the extrusion has a central opening in the main head
thereof which receives a metallic reinforcing wire 50.

As will be further described more fully hereinafter, the
flap 44 which defines the main opening into the completed
bag is provided with a coiled zipper of the type shown
in FIGURE 8. More particularly, the coiled zipper
of FIGURE 8 is comprised of two adjacent fabric scc-
tions 60 and 61 which each have a coil of a suitable plastic
material such as nylon threaded through their opposing
edges. These coils are then suitably formed to define
engaging zipper-type elements which are opened and
closed by way of a suitable runner 62 having a pull 63.
Zippers of this type are well known, and are commercially
available at the present time.

While certain aspects of the invention are practiced
with the use of any type zipper, one specific aspect of
the invention involves the use of a coiled zipper, the coils
of which are made of a plastic material such as nylon,
whereby the zipper can be cut with simple shearing equip-
ment such as hand-scissors. Moreover, this type zipper
can be sewn across with conventional sewing equipment
without the danger of breaking the needle of the sewing
machine on a metal zipper efement.

As will be described more fully hereinafter, such

zippers are further commerically available in long coils
which are cut to length by the user as contrasted to the
need for purchasing pre-finished metallic zippers in pre-
determined lengths. Thus, such predetermined lengths of
metal zippers have been found commonly to vary by more
- than %" in a length of the order of 36", thereby com-
plicating manufacturing techniques using such zippers.

Referring to FIGURE 9, 1 have illustrated therein the
manner in which the flap 44 is connected to panel portion
43. 1t will be noted that the flap 44 has dimensions
greater than the cut-out section in the panel section 43 so
that the edges of the flap 44 will somewhat overlap the
cut-out section of panel 43 by, for example, 12".

In assembling these two members, the zipper fabric
portions 60 and 61 are first sewn to the adjacent edges of
flap 44 and panel portion 43 in a manner disclosed in my
copending application Serial No. 387,390, and assigned
10 the assignee of the present invention. However, as
contrasted to that application, and where a coiled plastic
zipper is used, a zipper length greater than the length of
the closure is used so that the zipper ends 64 and 65 over-
lap the upper edge of panel portions 43 and 44. There-
after, reinforcing stitch lines 66 and 67 are sewn directly
across the upper edges of panel portions 43 and 44,
thereby to firmly retain these panel portions in position
with respect to one another independently of the zipper.

It is to be particularly noted that such an operation
could not be performed with prior art metallic zippers
because of the possibility of breaking a sewing needle
when sewing through a metallic zipper. In the case of
the plastic zipper, however, the sewing needle will pass
directly through the plastic coil without damage to the
needle.

Thus, in FIGURE 9, a sufficiently long length of zip-
per is gut from a reel, it only being necessary that the
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ends of the zipper will project beyond the top of the flap
as shown by projecting ends 64 and 65. This is to be
contrasted to pre-formed metallic zippers whose lengths
can considerably vary, thereby resulting in some cases
in an unsightly gap between the end of the zipper and
the top of the flap formed of panel portions 43 and 44.

Thereafter, and as shown in FIGURE 10, the pre-
assembled panel portions 43 and 44 have their edges
sewn to the flange 47 of welt 46 along the stitch line 47a.
Note that this sewing operation automatically forces the
panel edges to bend inwardly to define a flange-type
arrangement. Moreover, the reinforcing wire 50 in the
welt 46 will hold the panel to its predetermined rectan-
gular shape, thus simplifying subsequent operations.
This welt further serves to reinforce the bag after assem-
bly thereof.

The panel 41 is connected to its welt 45 in an identical
manner to that illustrated in FIGURE 10, Thereafter,
the two panels are assembled with the finished frame 40,
as illustrated in FIGURE 11, wherein the edges of fin-
ished frame 40 are merely inserted into the pockets 49
of welts 45 and 46, and sewn thereto. Thus, in FIGURE
11, the left-hand edge of frame 40 is shown as inserted into
the pocket 49 of welt 46, and a stitch line 51 is passed
through the frame 40, flange 47 of welt 36 and the in-
wardly bent edge portion of the panel formed of panel
portions 43 and 44.

In an identical manner, the welt 45 permits secure-
ment of the right-hand end of bag 40 to the panel 41
as by the exposed stitch line 52. Note that stitch line
51 will also be exposed in the finished bag.

FIGURE 12 shows a further modification of the man-
ner in which securement between frame 40 and the sub-
assembled welt and panel may take place for the case of
panel 44 wherein a pre-stressed plastic strip 60a is used
which will curve over the final stitch line, thereby to pro-
tect the final stitch line. Thus, in FIGURE 12, when
the edge of subassembled frame 40 is placed within the
pocket 49, an elongated strip 60a of plastic material is
also inserted into the pocket. The pocket strip 60a is
then flexed outwardly to the position shown in the dotted
lines in FIGURE 12, and the stitch line 51 is made
through the strip 60a, frame 40, flange 47 and the panel.
The strip 60a is then released, and will curve inwardly
and over the surface of frame 40 which carries the stitch
line 51. In a similar manner, the stitch line 52 of FIG-
URE 11 would be covered by a similar inwardly curved
strip.

Atlthough this invention has been described with respect
to its preferred embodiments, it should be understood
that many variations and modifications will now be
obvious to those skilled in the art, and it is preferred,
therefore, that the scope of the invention be limited not
by the specific disclosure herein, but only by the appended
claims.

The embodiments of the invention in which an exclu-
sive privilege or property is claimed are defined as
follows:

1. A carrying case comprising a generally tubular
frame, carrying handle means connected to a central
portion of said tubular frame, front and rear side panels
of flexible material extending across the opposite ends of
said tubular frame and first and second identical welt
means connecting the periphery of said front and rear
panels to the periphery of the said opposite ends of said
rigid frame; each of said first and second welt means
being identical in construction; each of said welts having
first and second extending flanges, said first flanges of
said first and second welts extending along the inner
surfaces of said opposite ends of said frame; said second
flanges extending over the outer surfaces of said opposing
ends of said frame; and first stitch line means extending
through one end of said frame, said first flange of said
first welt, and the periphery of said first panel; and second
stitch line means extending through the other end of
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said frame, said first flange of said second welt and the
periphery of said rear panel; said second flanges of said
first and second welts extending over the outer surface of
said opposite end of said frame; said first and second
stitch lines spaced from the ends of said second flanges
of said first and second welts, respectively; and first and
second laterally coiled plastic strips secured to said frame
by said first and second stitch lines; one lateral side of
said first ard seccnd strips captured beneath said second
flanges of said first and second welts, respactivaly; the
opposite lateral side of said first and second strips coiling
over their respective first and second stitch line.

2. A carrying case comprising a generally tubular
frame, carrying handle means connected to a central por-
tion of said tubular frame, front and rear side panels
of flexible material extending across the opposite ends of
said tubular frame and first and second identical welt
means connecting the periphery of said front and rear
panels to the periphery of the said opposite ends of said
rigid frame; each of said first and second welt means
being identical in construction; each of said welts having
first and second extending flanges, said first flanges of
said first and second welts extending along the inner sur-
faces of said opposite ends of said frame; said second
flanges extending over the outer surfaces of said opposing
ends of said frame; and first siitch line means extending
through one end of said frame, said first flange of said
first welt, and the periphery of said first panel; and second
stitch line ‘means extending through the other end of
said frame, said first flange of said second welt and the
periphery of said rear panel; said front panel comprising
a separate U-shaped central flap portion extending down
from one end of said front panel and a body portion re-
ceiving said flap portion as a closure; a coiled plastic
zipper connecting said flap portion to said body portion;
said zipper extending along the full length of the junc-
tion between said flap portion and said body portion with
both ends of said zipper extending beyond the said one
end of said front panel; said first stitch line extending
directly through said both ends of said zipper.

3. A carrying case comprising a generally tubular
frame, carrying handle means connected to a central
portion of said tubular frame, front and rear side panels
of flexible material extending across the opposite ends
of said tubular frame and first and second identical welt
means connecting the periphery of said front and rear
panels to the periphery of the said opposite ends of said
rigid frame; each of said welts being identical in con-
struction; each of said welts having first and second
extending flanges; said second flanges extending over the
outer surfaces of said opposing ends of said frame; and
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first stitch line means extending through one end of said
frame, said first flange of said first welt, and the periphery
of said front panel; and sscond stitch line means extend-
ing through the other end of said frame, said first flange
of said second welt, and the periphery of said rear panel;
said front panel comprising a separate U-shaped central
flap portion extending down from one end of said front
panel and a body portion receiving said flap portion as
a clesure; a coiled plastic zipper connecting said flap
portion to said body portion; said zipper extending along
the full length of the junction between said flap portion
and said body portion with both ends of said zipper
extending beyond the said one end of said front panel;
said first stitch line extending directly through said both
ends of said zipper. )

4. A carrying case comprising a generally tubular
frame, carrying handle means connected to-a central
portion of said tubular frame, front and rear side panels
of flexible material extending across the opposite ends
of said tubular frame; first stitch line means extending
through one end of said frame and the periphery of said
front panel; second stitch line means extending through
the other end of said frame and the periphery of said
rear panel whereby said first and second stitch line means
secure said front and rear panels to said frame; said front
panel comprising a separate U-shaped central flap portion
extending down from one end of said front panel and
a body portion receiving said flap portion as a’ closure; -
a coiled plastic zipper connecting said flap portion to said
body; said zipper extending along the full length of the
junction between said flap portion and said body portion
with both ends of said zipper extending beyond the said
one end of said front panel; said first stitch line means
extending directly through said both ends of said zipper.
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1

26,443
PANEL STRUCTURE FOR SOFT-SIDED LUGGAGE
Michael Kish, Jr., Hightstown, N.J., assignor to Atlantic
Products Corporation, Trenton, N.J,, a corparation of
New Jersey .
Original No. 3,266,604, dated Aug. 16, 1966, Ser. No.
443,019, Mor. 26, 1965, which is a continustion-in-part
of Ser. MNo. 387,390, Aug. 4, 1964. Application for re-
issue Feb. 13, 1967, Ser. Mo, 17,449
5 Claims, (Cl. 190—41)

Maiter enclosed in heavy bragkets [ J appears in the
original patent but forms ne part of this reissue specifi-
catinn; matter printed in itolics indicates ¢be additions
made by reissue,

ABSTRAECT OF THE DISCLOSURE

A carrying bag having flexible sides, one of which has
a U-shaped flap with a zipper closure. The U-shaped open-
ing in the panel recciving the flap has a zipper half extend-
ing from its interior surface, while the flap has a co-
operating zipper half extending from its interior surface.
The zipper fabrics envelop around the edges of the flap
and panel, with the flap being pulled over the opening
to cover the zipper when the zipper is closed. A reinforc-
ing wire is secured to the edge of the opening.

—— T R T ———

This application relates to a novel panel and zipper
construction for soft-sided luggage, and is a continuation-
in-part application of my copending application Serial No.
387,390, filed Aug. 4, 1964, entitled “Method of Manu-
facture for Luggage,” and assigned to the assignee of the
present invention which issued on February 21, 1967 as
U.S. Patent 3,305,052.

Soft-sided luggage is in general use, and i generally
comprised of a main tubular frame body wherein fabric
or fabric-type panels extend over the ends of the tube
to define the sides of the luggage. Thereafter, a zipper
opening is placed in one of the panels to define a flap
to provide access to the interior of the bag.

The principle of the present invention is to provide a
novel closure srrangement for panels of this general type
wherein the cooperating zipper halves connected to the
panel are connected in such a manner that the zipper is
completely hidden when closed, and so that the panel
portion secured to the bag support is provided with a
reinforcing wire therein to provide rigidity for this por-
tion when the panel is either opened or closed. :

Accordingly, a primary okbject of this invention is to
provide a novel zipper arrangement for soft-sided lug-
gage wherein the ponel remains relatively rigid and stiff
when tbe flap thercin i< opened.

Another obiect of this invention is to provide a novel
zipper arrangement for soft-sided luggage.

A stiil farther object of this invention is to provide a
novel zipper arrangement of soft-sided lnggage having an
openable panel in one side thereof wherein the parel is
provided with a reinforcing wire and a hidden zipper.

These and other objects of this invention will become
asonarent from the following description when taken in
cornection with the drawines, in which:

FIGURE 1 is a perspaciive view of the type of soft-
sided luggage to which the present invention applies.

FIGURE 2 is an exploded perspective view of the lug-
zage of FIGURE 1.

FIGURE 2 ic a cross-sectional view illustrating the
manner in which the panels nf FIGURE 2 are secured
to the main frame body.

FIGURE 4 is a cross-rectzonal view of a reinforced
we't nsed in the securement 57 the panels to the frame.

2

FIGURE 5 is a front view of the panel of FIGURES 1
and 2 which has a flap therein.

FIGURE 6 is a cross-sectional view of the panel of
FIGURE 5 taken across the lines 6—6 in FIGURE §
to particularly illustrate the novel manner in which a
reinforcing wire is connected to the periphery of the
panel opening and the novel manner in which the zipper
is connected to the panel opening.

FIGURE 7 is a cross-sectional view of FIGURE 5
10 taken across the lines 7—7 in FIGURE 5 particularly to

illustrate the manner in which the cooperating zipper
half is connected to the flap. ’

FIGURE 8 is a cross-sectional view of the arrange-
ments shown in FIGURES 6 and 7 when the zipper is

15 closed and illustrates the manner in which the zipper is
hidden.

Referring now to FIGURES 1 and 2, I have illustrated
therein a typical soft-sided luggage to which the inven-
tion applies which includes a frame body 10 which may

20 have reinforcing members 11 extending therefrom in the
manner disclosed in my U.S. Patent 3,305,052 fcopending
application Serial No. 387,390]. This rigid frame body is
then provided with a continuous rear panel 12 and a front
panel 13 which has a flap opening 14 therein to provide

25 access to the interior of the bag.

The panels 12 and 13 are connected to the frame 10
by means of welts 15 and 16, best shown in FIGURES 3
and 4. Thus, in FIGURE 4, the welt 15 (which is identical
to welt 16) is provided with an enlarged head portion 17

30 which may have a reinforcing wire 18 extending there-
through.

As ijllustrated in FIGURE 3, the welt 15 is interposed
between the inwardly bent legs of panel 12 and the edge
of frame 10. More particularly, the extending section of

35 welt 15 may first be sewn to frame 10 on the stitch line

20 with this subassembly thereafter being sewn to the

panel 12 along the stitch line 21. Alternatively, the welt

15 can be first sewn to the panel 12 and thereafter sewn

to the frame 10 so that only one stitch line is viewed
from the external side of frame 10. Note that the welt

15 of FIGURES 3 and 4 could be constructed in the

manner identical to that illustrated in my above noted
copending application Serial No. 387,390 wherein the welt
has a reentrant portion for completely receiving the in-

45 wardly bent sections of panel 12.

‘The panel 13 which has the flap 14 therein is best shown
in FIGURE 5 wherein FIGURE § illustrates a zipper por-
tion 30 connected about the periphery of flap 14 and a
cooperating zipper portion 31 connected about the periph-
ery of the opening in panel 13.

The manner in which zipper portions 30 and 31 are
secured to flap 14 and panel 13, respectively, is best shown
in FIGURES 7 and 6, respectively, Referring first to FIG-
URE 6, there is illustrated therein a cross-scctional view
through the panel portion 13. It is to be noted in FIG-
URE 6 that the front of the panel is cn the right of the
drawing. Thus, the panel is formed of a main body 32
of 2ny suitable flexible material which could bave an
60 interior lining 33 secured thereto.

The zipper half 31 is provided with the usual extend-
ing fabric section 34 which is shown as being folded
around the end of the interior of the opening in panel
13 and sewn thereto as by the stitch line 35. Note that

65 " the zipper end is adjacent the front of the panel.

Thereafter, and in accordance with the invention, a
rigid steel wire 3§ is placed adjacent the end of panel
13 and on top of the ziprer fabric 34, and a fabric cover
37 is wrapped about the wire and over the end of the

70 periphery of the opening in panel 13 and is sewn thereto
as by the stitch line 38 so as to hold the wire 36 in posi-

o
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tion. Note that the wire 36 extends completely around the
full length of the opening in panel 13. .

Thus, when the flap 14 is open, and even when the
flap 14 is closed, the wire 36 provides substantial rigidity
to the normally flexible fabric, thereby substantially im-
proving the appearance of the product and increasing
its ability to resist wear and to retain its shape even under
adverse conditions of use.

Turning next to FIGURE 7, there is illustrated therein
the manner in which the zipper half 30 is secured to the
end of flap 14. Note that in FIGURE 7 the external sur-
face of the flap 14 is at the right of the drawing so
that the flap is comprised, for example, of the desired flap
material 40 which could have an interior lining 41 which
is similar to lining 33,

The zipper half 30 which has an extending fabric por-
tion 42 in the usual manner is then folded around the
end of flap 14, and is sewn thereto as along the stitch
line 43. Thereafter a flap of a suitable finishing material
44 may be sewn about the end of the complete assemblage,
as illustrated, along the stitch line 45. Note that in FIG-
URE 7 the zipper 30 extends along the rear surface of
the flap. . .

This novel zipper arrangement then operates as illus-
trated in FIGURE 8 wherein, when the zipper is closed,
the end of flap 14 will be pulled over the top of the
exterior of panel 13, since the zipper fabric 42 has a shorter
length than the zipper fabric 34. Therefore, the zipper
closure will be completely hidden from external view, and
will be protected from abusive handling.

Although this invention has been described with respect
to its preferred embodiments, it should be understood
that many variations and modifications will now be ob-
vious to those skilled in the art, and it is preferred,
therefore, that the scope of the invention be limited not
- by the specific disclosure herein, but only by the ap-
pended claims.

The embodiments of the invention in which an ex-
clusive privilege or property is claimed are defined as
follows:

1. In a carrying bag; a main enclosed frame having
first and second side panels enclosing the ends of said
frame; one of said side panels having a U-shaped flap
therein cooperating with a U-shaped opening therein; and
zipper means extending between the edge of said U-shaped
flap and the edge of said U-shaped opening to secure
said flap to said one. of said side panels and to provide
access to the interior of said bag when said zipper means
is open; said zipper means comprising first and second
cooperating zipper halves having respective extending
fabric portions for securement of said zipper halves; and
an elongated rigid metallic reinforcing wire; first and
second connection means; said fabric portion of said
first zipper portion and said reinforcing wire copected
along the full length of the said edge of said U-shaped
opening in said one of said panels by said first con-
nection means; said fabric portion of said second zipper
portion connected along the full length of said edge of
said U-shaped flap by said second connection means;
said first zipper half having a free edge extending out-
wardly from the exterior surface of said one of said
panels adjacent its said edge; said second zipper half having
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a free edge extending outwardly from the interior surface
of said flap.

2. The carrying bag substantially as set forth in claim
1 wherein said first and second connection means include
lines of stitching connecting said respective zipper halves
to the surfaces adjacent said respective edges of said U-
shaped opening in said one of said panels and said flap.

3. The carrying bag substantially as set forth in claim
1 wherein said outwardly extending free edge of said
second zipper half has a length shorter than the distance
from the beginning of said free edge to said edge of said
flap whereupon said edge of said flap is pulled over to
top of said edge of said U-shaped opening when said
zipper is closed.

4. The carrying bag substantially as set forth in claim
2 wherein said first connection means further includes an
elongated fabric strip lapped over said edge of said U-
shaped opening and secured to the opposing surfaces of
said U-shaped opening adjacent its said edge; said wire
interposed between said edge and the interior of said
elongated fabric strip. )

S. In a carrying bag; a main enclosed frame having
first and second side panels enclosing the ends of said
frame; one of said side panels having a U-shaped flap
therein cooperating with @ U-shaped opening therein; and
zipper means extending between the edge of said U-shaped
flap and the edge of said U-shaped opening 1o secure
said flap to said one of said side panels and to provide
access to the interior of said bag when said zipper means
is open; said zipper means comprising first and second
cooperating zipper halves having respective extending fab-
ric portions for securement of said zipper halves; first
and second connection means; said fabric portion of
said first zipper portion .enveloping around the full
length of the said edge of said U-shaped opening and
connected along the full length of the said edge of said
U-shaped opening in said one of said panels by said
first connection means; said fabric portion of said second
zipper portion enveloping around the full length of the said
edge of said U-shaped flap and connected along the full
length of said edge of said U-shaped flap by said second
connection means; said first zipper half having a free
edge extending outwardly from the exterior surface of
said one of said panels adjacent its said edge; said second
zipper half having a free edge extending outwardly from
the interior surface of said flap.

References Cited

The following references, cited by the Examiner, are of
record in the patented file of this patent or the original
patent. -

UNITED STATES PATENTS

2,288,105 6/1942 Plotkin .o ______ 190—48
2,316,133 4/1943 Schaaff __________. 24—-205.1
2,684,135 7/1954 Cart cceeoe oo 19041
2,746,581  5/1956 Ritter . . --_- 190—41
2,985,265 5/1961 Gehrie —ooeomaeooao 190—41
2,634,836 4/1953 Warren - 190—48
FOREIGN PATENTS
658,864 10/1951 Great Britain.

DONALD F. NORTON, Primary Examiner.



3k

Aug. 27, 1968 M. KISH, JR : Re. 26,443
PANEL STRUCTURE FOR SOFT-SIDED LUGGAGE
Original Filed March 26, 1965 2 Sheets-Sheet 1

—L T 1o

il

. 7 P
: o INVENTOR.
AP/ CAREL A5, SR
N ‘ BY ' :
o G s r0oLenvn, RBem Geren §Drren
—ET = E.

VR il

ExH18,7 72



35

Aug. 27, 1968 M. KISH, JR Re. 26,443
PANEL STRUCTURE FOR SOFT-SIDED LUGGAGE

Original Filed March 26, 1965 2 Sheets-Sheet 2

o0

INVENTOR
A7/ EHAEL KIS I,

391N BY

Crreorame, /PR, Giea 5 Sorren

AT TOSNESS

““\““““‘

("
777727777777 Jg\



36

Appendix B
Statistical Tables



37

Table 1.--~Luggage, cases, and so forth, fitted or unfitted, of materi-
als not specially provided for: U.S. imports for consumption, by
principal sources, 196§-70

Source : 1968 : 1969 : 1970
J8paN-mmmmmmmcemmm e cmmememeemt $5,L148,290 : $7,392,69) : $6,016,671
Republic of China (Taiwan)------: L53,947 + 1,372,311 : 3,625,771
Hong Konge-m-e=smemmeemauanx m——— 865,513 : 1,387,882 1,735,468
Republic of Kore@=-—-—eeeceaee—ca: 551,61l : 599,739 1,576,626

All other=—meecem oo : 1,978,922 : 1,650,897 2,019,908
Totalmmmmmm e e om e e e e meem : 9,298,286 : 12,003,523 ¢ 1L, 97k, LIk

Source: Compiled from official statistics of the U.S. Department
of Commerce. )
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